- G i 3 15 18 TSR B RG2S L
T riat.qiass Groag Ga., iid.”

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People's Republic of China)

Stock!

‘_» Foul NI YW Yk vkl T I %0




Con en ¢

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

INCOME STATEMENT OF THE PARENT COMPANY
CO”NSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW OF THE PARENT COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

18

26
38
52
54
58
60
62
63
64
65
66

68

70
257



2

Co po a e Info ma ion

DIRECTORS
E sc Mpdf‘ ec 0"1

Mr. Ruan Hongliang (Chairman of the Board of Directors)
Ms. Jiang Jinhua

Mr. Wei Yezhong

Mr. Shen Qifu

Independen non-e sec wlai ec 0"1

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong
Ms. Hua Fulan
Mr. Ng Ki Hung

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Zheng Wenrong (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Shen Fuquan

Mr. Zhu Quanming

Ms. Niu Liping

Ms. Zhang Huizhen

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong (Chairman)

Ms. Hua Fulan

Mr. Ng Ki Hung
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Cui Xiaozhong (Chairman)

Mr. Ruan Hongliang
Ms. Hua Fulan

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ruan Hongliang (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Xiaozhong
Mr. Ng Ki Hung

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. Ruan Hongliang (Chairman)

Mr. Wei Yezhong

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ruan Hongliang (Chairman)

Ms. Jiang Jinhua

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ruan Zeyun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Ruan Hongliang
Ms. Ruan Zeyun



REGISTERED OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

1999 Yunhe Road

Xiuzhou District

Jiaxing

Zhejiang Province

People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 6, 11/F, Prosperity Place

6 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

(effective from 15 June 2020)

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.flatgroup.com.cn

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Morgan, Lewis & Bockius

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certitied Public Accountants LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited, Jiaxing Branch

China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, Jiaxing Branch

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited,
Jiaxing Branch

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Citibank, N.A., Hong Kong Branch

DBS Bank Limited, Hong Kong Branch

H SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.

3



4

Chai man’t S a emen

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Flat Glass Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), I present the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 (“FY20207) (the “Reporting Period”).

In FY2020, the Group benefited from the impact of the release of new capacity as well as stable and strong increase in
demand of PV industry, and its operating revenue reached a new high. The operating revenue of the Group for FY2020
was approximately RMB6,260.42 million, representing an increase of 30.24% as compared to RMB4,806.80 million
for FY2019. The net profit attributable to Shareholders of the parent company for FY2020 was RMB1,628.78 million,
representing an increase of 127.09% as compared to RMB717.24 million for FY2019.

BOOMING DEVELOPMENT OF THE DOMESTIC PV INDUSTRY

During the first several months in FY2020, the domestic installed capacity was affected by the COVID-19 to some extent,
yet with the successful control of the COVID-19 in China plus the attention on clean and low carbon energy from all
walks of the society, particularly subsequent to repeated highlight on “peaking carbon dioxide emissions and achieving
carbon neutrality” on major occasions by President Xi Jinping, the PV industry has witnessed a vigorous recovery trend
since the second half of 2020. Innovation has been extensively applied into product and technology and the electricity
price and cost of power generation continued to decline, and the export of products increased steadily.

According to the statistics from the China PV Industry Association (CPIA), in FY2020, China’s new installed capacity
reached 48.2 gigawatts (“GW?”), representing a year-on-year increase of 60% and ranking first globally for consecutive 8
years. As of the end of FY2020, the cumulative PV grid-connected installed capacity in China reached 253GW, representing
a year-on-year increase of 23.5% and ranking first globally for consecutive 6 years. The volume of PV power generation
in this year reached 260.5 billion kwh, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.2%, and accounted for 3.5% of the
total volume of power generation in China, representing an increase of 0.4 percentage point.

STEADY DEVELOPMENT OF THE OVERSEAS PV MARKET

Global PV market remained a growth trend overall despite various degrees of city closure measures in different countries
driven by the spread of the COVID-19, exerting certain impact on the PV installed capacity. In 2020, new PV installed
capacity increased by 130GW globally, representing a year-on-year increase of 13%, with the United States as the second
largest installed market in the world. A new round of FIT policies in Vietnam spurred a wave of rooftop PV installation in
Vietnam. According to the announcements issued by the Ministry of Industry and Trade in Vietnam, the new PV installed
capacity in Vietnam reached 10.75GW in FY2020, of which the rooftop PV installation capacity exceeded 9GW, leaping
as the third largest installed market in the world. In addition, in light of the cost of PV power generation continuing to
decline and the EU ecological agreement, the European market will remain a growth momentum.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



ACCELERATING THE EXPANSION OF PV GLASS PRODUCTION CAPACITY

PV glass products, being the principal products of the Group, is expected to remain the main driver of the Group’s growth
in 2021. With the rapid development of the global PV industry, the demand for PV glass continues to increase. In order to
meet the strong market demand and further increase the market share of the Company’s PV glass, two PV glass furnaces
with a daily melting capacity 1,000 tons in Vietnam Production Base were ignited and put into production in the fourth
quarter of 2020 and the first quarter of 2021, respectively. The first PV glass furnace with a daily melting capacity of
1,200 tons in the Phase II of Anhui Production Base was ignited and put into production in the first quarter of 2021. In
addition, the Group will promote the construction progress of other PV glass furnaces in Phase II of Anhui Production
Base and it is expected to be ignited and put into production in 2021. Furthermore, the Group also will promote the
construction progress of other PV glass furnaces in Phase III of Anhui Production Base (five PV glass furnaces with a
daily melting capacity 1,200 tons) and it is expected to be ignited and put into production in 2022.

IMPROVING RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CAPABILITIES THROUGH COST REDUCTION AND
EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENT

PV glass production lines of the Group that was newly ignited and put into production were large-scale furnaces and is
applied with new production technology, which will enhance the production scale and efficiency of the Group.

At present, the double-sided power generation system is mainly applied in domestic and overseas large-scale PV power
generation projects while the proportion of double glass modules is expanding continuously. Meanwhile, the production
of modules in large size and with high power keeps increasing gradually. As such, the Group will make more investment
in double glass and large-sized glass besides efforts put into R&D of light transmittance rate and self-manufactured
equipment, so as to maintain recognized sustainability and competitiveness of the Group in the Global PV glass market
while meeting the differentiated demand of the solar modules for PV glass.

R an Hongliang
Chairman

Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, PRC
29 March 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.

5



6

FTPE;-’Yea“ Financial S mma

-

Fo he ea ended 31 Decembe

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue 6,260,418 4,806,804 3,039,802 2,974,511 2,951,265

Net profit 1,628,784 717,244 410,926 429,511 606,044

Earnings per share
— Basic (RMB) 0.83 0.37 0.23 0.24 0.34
— Diluted (RMB) 0.81 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Fo he ea ended 31 Decembe

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets 6,696,524 4,939,536 3,896,692 3,055,430 2,229,959

Current assets 5,569,277 4,452,745 3,056,857 2,950,113 2,236,666

Total assets 12,265,800 9,392,281 6,953,549 5,955,543 4,466,625

— Current liabilities 3,330,801 4,454,089 2,250,047 1,968,537 1,390,010

— Non-current liabilities 1,700,256 425,303 1,034,848 736,633 118,966

Total liabilities 5,031,058 4,879,392 3,284,895 2,705,170 1,508,976

Net assets 7,234,743 4,512,888 3,668,654 3,250,373 2,957,649

Share capital 510,312 487,500 450,000 450,000 450,000

Total equity 7,234,743 4,512,888 3,668,654 3,250,373 2,957,649
Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 7,234,743 4,512,888 3,668,654 3,250,373 2,957,649

The financial summary for the year 2019 and 2020 were extracted from the Consolidated Financial Statements prepared
in accordance with the CASBE, while the financial summary for the years 2016, 2017 and 2018 were extracted from
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the corresponding reporting period prepared in accordance with

the IFRSs.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of various glass products, including PV glass, float glass,
architectural glass and household glass. The production facilities of the Group are strategically located in Jiaxing, Zhejiang
Province, and Fengyang County, Chuzhou, Anhui Province in the PRC and Haiphong, Vietnam. The Group mainly sells
glass products to customers in countries including China, Thailand, Cambodia, Indonesia, India and the United States.

In FY2020, the Group benefited from the impact of capacity expansion and the boom of PV industry, and its operating
revenue reached a new high. The operating revenue of the Group for FY2020 was approximately RMB6,260.42 million,
representing an increase of 30.24% as compared to RMB4,806.80 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019”).
The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company (the “Shareholders”) for FY2020 was RMB1,628.78
million, representing an increase of 127.09% as compared to RMB717.24 million for FY2019.

o of he G o py b 4i
(¢ - 0 (3 op (Y tlnqt
1. Dome,' ice g)antion in Anh i P'lo?)‘{ce, he PRC

Two projects on processing capacity of 750,000 tons of PV glass in Phase II of Anhui Production Base represent
the project of using the proceeds from the issuance of A share convertible corporate bonds of the Company and
the project of using the proceeds from the non-public issuance of A shares of the Company, including four PV
glass production lines with a daily melting capacity of 1,200 tons. The first PV glass production line with a daily
melting capacity of 1,200 tons was ignited and put into production in the first quarter of 2021, and another three
are expected to be gradually put into production in 2021.

In addition, due to the vigorous development of the whole PV industry and the differentiated requirements of
downstream customers for large-sized and thin glass, the Group expects that the above capacity will not be able
to meet the demand of downstream customers for the Group’s products after it is put into operation. Thus, the
Group intends to construct five PV glass furnaces with a daily melting capacity of 1,200 tons in Fengning Modern
Industrial Park, Fengyang County, Chuzhou City, Anhui Province, the PRC, which are expected to be gradually
put into operation in 2022.

2. O’E‘;eat e pang ion in Haiphong Vie nam

Due to novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19”) since the beginning of 2020, Vietnam has stopped issuing visas to China
citizens and the technicians are unable to attend Vietnam site. It has certain impact on the construction progress of
the Vietnam Production Base, but with the control of the COVID-19 and striving for the staff quota from the local
government by the Company, the Company’s staff arrived at the construction site successively, and the construction
activities gradually returned to the normal level. As such, two PV glass furnaces with a daily melting capacity of
1,000 tons in the PV glass production base in Haiphong, Vietnam were ignited and put into production in the fourth
quarter of 2020 and the first quarter of 2021, respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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3. Cold  epai ofe dy ing PV glagq f "nacet

In order to further increase the production efficiency, the Group has cold repaired one PV glass furnace with a daily
melting capacity of 600 tons at the production base in Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, which was completed
and ignited in the fourth quarter of 2020.

4. Recony " ¢ ion of heqecond floa glag f “nace comple ed

In respect of the conduction of cold repair for the Group’s existing daily melting capacity of 600-ton float glass
furnace, the transformation was completed and was re-ignited and put into operation in August 2020.

5 Upd 1 fne Hqha
paeonit ance o new 136‘1

On 5 February 2021, the Company announced to propose to issue up to 76,000,000 new H shares, which has been
approved by the Board. The cap of the new H shares proposed to be issued shall represent: (i) approximately 3.5%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the Board meeting; (ii) approximately 3.4% of the
total issued share capital of the Company enlarged by this issuance; (iii) approximately 16.9% of the total issued
H shares of the Company as at the date of the Board meeting; and (iv) approximately 14.4% of the total issued H
shares of the Company enlarged by this issuance. This issuance has been considered and approved at the 2021 first
extraordinary general meeting, the 2021 first A share class meeting and the 2021 first H share class meeting held
on 25 March 2021 and it has been reported to the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) on 25 March
2021. As of the date of this annual report, the issuance of new H shares has not been completed.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Booming de‘PETopmen of he domeq ic PV ind 1" y

During the first several months in FY2020, the domestic installed capacity was affected by the COVID-19 to some extent,
yet with the successful control of the COVID-19 in China plus the attention on clean and low carbon energy from all
walks of the society, particularly subsequent to repeated highlight on “peaking carbon dioxide emissions and achieving
carbon neutrality” on major occasions by President Xi Jinping, the PV industry has witnessed a vigorous recovery trend
since the second half of 2020. Innovation has been extensively applied into product and technology and the electricity
price and cost of power generation continued to decline, and the export of products increased steadily.

According to the statistics from the China PV Industry Association, in FY2020, China’s new installed capacity reached
48.2 GW, representing a year-on-year increase of 60% and ranking first globally for consecutive 8 years. As of the end
of FY2020, the cumulative PV grid-connected installed capacity in China reached 253GW, representing a year-on-year
increase of 23.5% and ranking first globally for consecutive 6 years. The volume of PV power generation in this year
reached 260.5 billion kwh, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.2%, and accounted for 3.5% of the total volume
of power generation in China, representing an increase of 0.4 percentage point.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



S eady deﬂqopmen of he oﬂpteat PV ma ke

Global PV market remained a growth trend overall despite various degrees of city closure measures in various countries
as driven by the spread of the COVID-19, exerting certain impact on the PV installed capacity. In 2020, new PV installed
capacity increased by 130GW globally, representing a year-on-year increase of 13%, with the United States as the second
largest installed market in the world. A new round of FIT policies in Vietnam spurred a wave of rooftop PV installation in
Vietnam. According to the announcements issued by the Ministry of Industry and Trade in Vietnam, the new PV installed
capacity in Vietnam reached 10.75GW in FY2020, of which the rooftop PV installation capacity exceeded 9GW, leaping
as the third largest installed market in the world. In addition, in light of the cost of PV power generation continuing to
decline and the EU ecological agreement, the European market will remain a growth momentum.

Accel€ a ing he e pangion of PV glagg p od c ion capaci y

PV glass products, being the principal products of the Group, is expected to remain the main driver of the Group’s growth
in 2021. With the rapid development of the global PV industry, the demand for PV glass continues to increase. In order to
meet the strong market demand and further increase the market share of the Company’s PV glass, two PV glass furnaces
with a daily melting capacity 1,000 tons in Vietnam Production Base were ignited and put into production in the fourth
quarter of 2020 and the first quarter of 2021, respectively. The first PV glass furnace with a daily melting capacity of
1,200 tons in the Phase II of Anhui Production Base was ignited and put into production in the first quarter of 2021. In
addition, the Group will promote the construction progress of other PV glass furnaces in Phase II of Anhui Production
Base and it is expected to be ignited and put into production in 2021. Furthermore, the Group also will promote the
construction progress of other PV glass furnaces in Phase III of Anhui Production Base (five PV glass furnaces with a
daily melting capacity 1,200 tons) and it is expected to be ignited and put into production in 2022 gradually.

Imp’ o'Ph‘l’g : e‘vea" ch and de‘Pqupmen capabili ieq h o gh coy “ed cion and efficiency imp oﬂ‘r‘nen

PV glass production line of the Group that was ignited newly and put into production produces large-scale furnaces and
applied new production technology, which will enhance the product scale and efficiency effects of the Group.

At present, the double-sided power generation system is mainly applied in domestic and overseas large-scale PV power
generation projects while the proportion of double glass modules are raising continuously. Meanwhile, the production
of modules with large size and high power increases. As such, the Group will invest more in double glass and large-
sized glass in addition to the efforts put into R&D of light transmittance rate and self-manufactured equipment, so as to
maintain recognized sustainability and competitiveness of the Group in the Global PV glass market while meeting the
differentiated demand of the solar modules for PV glass.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In FY2020, the Group benefited from the impact of the release of new capacity as well as stable and strong increase in
demand of PV industry, and its operating revenue reached a new high. The operating revenue of the Group for FY2020
was approximately RMB6,260.42 million, representing an increase of 30.24% as compared to RMB4,806.80 million
for FY2019. The net profit attributable to Shareholders of the parent company for FY2020 was RMB1,628.78 million,
representing an increase of 127.09% as compared to RMB717.24 million for FY2019.

Re?gl; e

The operating revenue of the Group for FY2020 was approximately RMB6,260.42 million, representing an increase of
30.24% as compared to RMB4,806.80 million for FY2019. The increase was mainly because the impact of the release
of new capacity as well as stable and strong increase in demand of PV industry, resulting in the growth of sales volume
and sales price.

The following table set forth our revenue details for the year indicated:

-

Fo he ea ended 31 Decembe

2020 2019
(A died) (Audited)
(RMB) (RMB)
Categories of goods
PV glass 5,225,674,398.32  3,747,703,681.06

Float glass 75,653,286.86 171,052,809.62
Household glass 326,537,446.58 336,346,106.51
Architectural glass 530,624,507.17 451,154,497.71
Mining business" 63,783,515.00 49,629,587.50
Other business® 38,144,638.33 50,917,338.56
By geographical

PRC 4,451,797,460.85 3,320,177,089.51
Asia (excluding China) 1,342,878,079.39 959,545,036.27
Europe 188,748,992.29 208,606,597.97
North America 253,658,246.74 292,487,649.64
Others 23,335,012.99 25,987,647.57

Notes:

(1) “Mining business” mainly include the quartzite ore extracted from the Mine, which was sold to third parties.
2) “Other business” mainly include rental income and sales income of materials.
FLAT GLASS GROUP CO.,LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Ope a ing coy

The cost of operating of the Group increased by RMB56.9 million, or 1.73%, from RMB3,289.74 million for FY2019
to RMB3,346.64 million for FY2020, which remained stable overall.

G Oyg pofi andg Oyg p ofi ma gin

The gross profit of the Group increased by 92.07% from RMB1,517.06 million in FY2019 to RMB2,913.78 million for
FY2020, and the gross profit margin increased to 46.54% in FY2020 (FY2019: 31.56%). The growth of gross profit
margin was mainly due to the improvement of gross profit margin of the PV glass products, which increased in the average
selling price, and the increase in the sales volume of thin glass (2.0 mm), coupled with the improvement of production
technology, the optimization of production capacity structure and decrease in price of part of raw material and fuel,
which decreased the product costs.

Fo he ea ended 31 Decembe

2020 y 2019

(A di ed) (Audited)
) } G Oyg pi ofi Gross profit
G oy p ofi ma gin Gross profit margin
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
PV glass 2,581,936.05 49.41 % 1,231,723.27 32.87%
Float glass 24,267.40 32.08 % 21,258.85 12.43%
Household glass 88,445.90 27.09 % 94,550.71 28.11%
Architectural glass 147,977.23 27.89 % 99,412.18 22.04%
Mineral products 35,819.06 56.16% 28,964.01 58.36%
Other business 35,330.84 92.62 % 41,159.49 80.84%
Total 2,913,776.48 46.54% 1,517,068.51 31.56%

Saley e peny &g

The sales expenses of the Group increased by 18.32%, from RMB255.11 million in FY2019 to RMB301.85 million for
FY2020. The reasons for the increase were mainly due to the increase in sales volume of the PV glass products, being
the principal products of the Group, and increases of domestic shipping unit price and influence of COVID-19, resulting
in the increase in shipment expenses.

Adminiy “a i'Pepe peny eq
The administrative expenses of the Group increased by 41.85%, from RMB121.50 million in FY2019 to RMB172.35

million for FY2020. The reason for the increase was mainly due to the increase in employee remuneration and benefits
as well as the increase in depreciation and amortization of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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Retea" ch and de’bq‘opmen COy ¢

The research and development costs of the Group increased by 39.47%, from RMB204.15 million in FY2019 to RMB284.72
million for FY2020. The reason for the increase was mainly due to the increase of research and development projects,
including the improvement of technology of the light transmission rate for ultra-thin glass, large-sized glass and remaining
competitive in the market.

Finance COy o

For FY2020, financial costs of the Group amounted to RMB141.53 million, representing an increase of 166.38% from
RMBS53.13 million in FY2019. The increase was mainly due to the increase of interest expenses caused by the increase
of short-term borrowings and the exchange loss caused by the changes in foreign exchange rates. The primary economic
environment in which the principal subsidiary of our Company operates is the PRC and its functional currency is RMB.
However, certain sales and purchases of the Group are denominated in United States dollars, Euros and Japanese yen,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The interest rate of bank loans was between 1.25% and 4.90% in FY2020, as compared to 2.75% and 5.10% in FY2019.
Income a4

For FY2020, the income tax of the Group amounted to RMB245.12 million, representing an increase of 68.55% from
RMB145.43 million in FY2019. In addition, the actual tax rate decreased from 16.86% in FY2019 to 13.08% in FY2020.

Details of tax expenses of the Company and certain subsidiaries are set out in the Note (VI) 54 to the financial information
set out in this ahnouncement.

Capi al E pengi 3 €&

During the Replorting Period, total capital expenditures of the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,950.13 million
(FY2019: RMB1,301.73 million), involving the purchase of fixed assets, construction in progress and intangible assets,
which mainly ihcluded the project of annual production capacity of 750,000 tons PV modules covers of Anhui production
bases and the Vietnam Production Base.

Ageqandey i y

Total assets of the Group increased from RMB9,392.28 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB12,265.80 million as at
31 December 2020. Shareholders’ equity increased from RMB4,512.89 million as at 31 December 2019 to RMB7,234.74
million as at 31 December 2020.

Fi ed ajqe ¢ impai men logg &
For FY2020, the balance of fixed assets impairment losses of the Group was RMB68.67 million, representing an increase
of RMB56.42 or 460.57% from RMB12.25 million as at 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly due to the cold

repair of some PV furnaces and the replacement of the corresponding solar glass processing equipment to further improve
the production capacity of ultra-thin and large-size PV glass.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Financial* €0 i cey and liv idi y

For FY2020, the Group’s financial liquidity and financial performance remained in a satisfactory condition. For FY2020,
the Group’s main sources of funding were proceeds for the public issuance of A Share convertible corporate bonds, cash

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. 13
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Cedi * ik and fo eign e wchange g ik

Most of the Group’s revenues and expenses are paid in RMB, while some of the Group’s sales, procurement and financial
liabilities are denominated in US dollars, Euros, Hong Kong dollars, Vietnam dong and Japanese yen. Most of the Group’s
bank deposits are deposited in RMB and US dollars, while bank loans of the Group were in RMB and United States dollars.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has incurred a net exchange loss of RMB75.35 million mainly due to the adverse
exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against US dollars.

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into certain forward contracts of currency structure to reduce foreign
exchange risks. The Group will pay close attention to the continuous changes in exchange rate and will consider other
hedging arrangements.

Emplo yee and’ em né a ion polic y

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 3,440 employees and most of them were based in the PRC,
with a total employee remuneration amounted to RMB333.97 million, representing 5.33% of the Group’s total revenue.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and provides trainings to its employees. New joiners
must attend mandatory in-house training. Furthermore, employees may attend external trainings such as trainings for
manufacturing management, quality control management and human resources management. Remuneration of employees
is reviewed periodically by reference to the market rate. After considering performance of the Group and job performance
of specific employees, the Group may pay them discretionary bonus.

The Group makes contributions for its employees in relation to the mandatory social security funds including pension,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance, medical and unemployment insurance and housing provident fund
contributions in the PRC.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the total equity of the Group was 2,041,248,788 shares, of which 1,591,248,788 were A shares
and 450,000,000 were H shares.

DIVIDEND

In order to share the achievement of the Group in 2020 with all our shareholders, the Board has recommended a final
dividend of RMBO.15 per share, subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.

FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2020



TAXATION
Hold€ y of A 4ha e

In accordance with the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the CSRC on
Implementing Differentiated Individual Income Tax Policy for Stock Dividends of Listed Companies (Cai Shui [2015]
No. 10H)(OOOODODDODODOOOOOOOoOoODOOLOOOOOOoOooooDoObbOooooooooobobbooogo
(O O [2015]1010)), for shares of listed companies acquired by individuals from public offerings or transfer of shares
in the market, where the holding period exceeds one year, the dividends shall be temporarily exempted from individual
income tax; where the holding period is less than one month (inclusive), the full amount of dividends shall be counted
as taxable income and where the holding period is more than one month and less than one year (inclusive), 50% of the
dividends shall be counted as taxable income on a provisional basis. The individual income tax rate of 20% shall be
applicable for all incomes mentioned above. For dividends distributed by listed companies, where the period of individual
shareholding is within one year (inclusive), the listed companies shall not withhold the individual income tax temporarily.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
CSRC on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui [2014]
No. 8H)(ODDOOOOOOOOOOUOUOUOOoooooooooboobobobbDbDbbObbbOoOoOoooooao

(0 O [2014]810)), listed companies shall withhold an income tax at the rate of 10% on dividends from the A shares of
the company invested by Hong Kong investors (including enterprises and individuals) through the SSE, and apply for
withholding via the competent tax authorities (before the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited is able to
provide details such as investor identities and holding periods to China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited, the policy of differentiated rates of taxation based on holding periods will temporarily not be implemented).
For investors who are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into
a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of lower than 10%, those enterprises and individuals may, or
may entrust a withholding agent to, apply to the competent tax authority of the listed company for the entitlement of the
rate under such tax treaty. Upon approval by the competent tax authority, the paid amount in excess of the tax payable
based on the tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
CSRC on the Tax Policies Related to the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (Cai Shui [2016]
No. 27)(OUUOOOODOOOOUOOOODODOOOOOOOOOoODOODbOOOOOooooobobobbobooooo
(0 O [2016]1270)), listed companies shall withhold an income tax at the rate of 10% on dividends from the A shares
of the company invested by Hong Kong investors (including enterprises and individuals) through the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and apply for withholding via the competent tax authorities (before the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited is able to provide details such as investor identities and holding periods to China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited, the policy of differentiated rates of taxation based on holding periods will temporarily
not be implemented). For investors who are tax residents of other countries and whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of lower than 10%, those enterprises
and individuals may, or may entrust a withholding agent to, apply to the competent tax authority of the listed company
for the entitlement of the rate under such tax treaty. Upon approval by the competent tax authority, the paid amount in
excess of the tax payable based on the tax rate according to such tax treaty will be refunded.

Holde y of Hyha' ey

In accordance with the requirements of the Circular on Certain Issues Concerning the Policies of Individual Income
Tax (Cai Shui Zi [1994] No. 020) (U D OO OOD0OOODOOODOOO@MDOON1994]0200)) promulgated
by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on 13 May 1994, overseas individuals are, as an
interim measure, exempted from the PRC individual income tax for dividends or bonuses received from foreign-invested
enterprises.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on Matters Concerning Withholding
Enterprise Income Tax When China Resident Enterprises Distribute Dividends to Foreign Non-resident Enterprise
Shareholders of H Shares (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897) (0 O D O OO0 OOOOOODOOOOOHOOOOOO
0000000000000 0000000000O(@0O0[2008]8970)), distributing dividends to foreign non-
resident enterprise shareholders of H shares for 2008 and for the years onwards shall be subject to the enterprise income
tax withheld at a uniform rate of 10%. Upon receipt of such dividends, an overseas non-resident enterprise shareholder
may apply to the competent tax authorities for relevant treatment under the tax treaties (arrangements) in person or
through a proxy or a withholding agent and provide evidence in support of its status as a beneficial owner as defined
in the tax treaties (arrangements). Upon verification by the competent tax authorities, the difference between the tax
levied and the amount of tax payable as calculated at the tax rate under the tax treaties (arrangements) will be refunded.
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According to the requirements of the Notice on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Program of the Shanghai Hong
Kong Stock Connect published by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the CSRC (Cai Shui
[2014] No. 8) (DO O OOOOOOOODDODOODODDOOOOOOOOUODOOODOODODDODODODDODOOOOOOO
000 O[2014]1810)), H-share companies shall withhold an individual income tax at the rate of 20% on dividends
from the H shares of the company invested by mainland individual investors on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect. For dividends of the shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange received
by mainland securities investment funds from investment through the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, individual
income tax shall be calculated in accordance with the above requirements. For dividends of the shares listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange received by mainland enterprise investors from investment through the Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect, H-share companies shall not withhold income tax of dividends, and mainland enterprise investors shall
report and pay the tax amount by themselves. In particular, the dividends received by resident enterprises in mainland
which hold H shares for at least 12 consecutive months shall be exempted from enterprise income tax according to law.

According to the requirements of the Notice on the Tax Policies Concerning the Pilot Program of the Shenzhen Hong
Kong Stock Connect published by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the CSRC (Cai Shui
[2016] No. 1I27) (O O0ODODODOOOOOOOODODODOOOOOOOUODODODOOODOOUOOUODODODDbDOOOOO
000 (@ 0O [2016]1270 )), H-share companies shall withhold an individual income tax at the rate of 20% on dividends
from the H shares of the company invested by mainland individual investors on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through
the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect. For dividends of the shares listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange received
by mainland securities investment funds from investment through the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect, individual
income tax shall be calculated in accordance with the above requirements. For dividends of the shares listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange received by mainland enterprise investors from investment through the Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect, H-share companies shall not withhold income tax of dividends, and mainland enterprise investors shall
report and pay the tax amount by themselves. In particular, the dividends received by resident enterprises in mainland
which hold H shares for at least 12 consecutive months could be exempted from enterprise income tax according to law.

The shareholders of the Company shall pay the relevant tax and/or are entitled to tax reliefs in accordance with the above
requirements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

M .R an Hongliang (U O O O 0O ), aged 59, is a founder of the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company. He
is currently an executive Director and the chairman of Board and the general manager of the Company, mainly responsible
for the overall corporate strategies formulation, management of business and operation of the Group. Mr. Ruan is currently
a member of the remuneration committee and the chairman of each of the nomination committee, strategic development
committee and risk management committee of the Company. Mr. Ruan graduated from Jiaxing First High School (I [J [J [

UO00)in July 1978.

Mr. Ruan has over 35 years’ experience in glass industry. Mr. Ruan served in the Company’s predecessor as a director
from June 1998 to December 2005, the deputy chairman of the Board from June 1998 to February 1999 and as the
chairman of the Board from March 1999 to May 2000 and from September 2003 to December 2005, respectively. Mr.
Ruan also served as the deputy general manager of the Company’s predecessor from May 2000 to September 2003. Mr.
Ruan has served in the Company as the chairman of the Board and the general manager since December 2005. Mr. Ruan
also serves in the Company’s subsidiaries. He has been a director and general manager of Shanghai Flat Glass Co., Ltd.*
(0DO0OD0DO0O0O0O0D0O0O0O0O0) (“Shanghai Flat”) since June 2006, of Zhejiang Jiafu Glass Co., Ltd.* (0 0 O OO OO
0 0O 0O) (“Zhejiang Jiafu”) since August 2007, of Anhui Flat Solar Materials Co., Ltd.* (00 00O OOO0OOOO
[ ) (“Anhui Flat Materials”) since January 2011, of Anhui Flat Solar Glass Co., Ltd* (U 000 O O0OO0OOOOO)
(“‘Anhui Flat Glass”) since January 2011, of Zhejiang Flat Glass Co., Ltd.* (D O O O 0O 0O O 0O 0O 0O O) (“Zhejiang Flat”)
since February 2011 and of Jiaxing Flat New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* (U D OO OO OO DO OOO O) (“Flat
New Energy”) since March 2014. He has also been a director of Flat (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (0 O O (O O )0 O O
) (“Flat HK”) since January 2013, of Flat (Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited (O 0O O (O 0O )0 0O 0O OO O) (“Flat
HK INVEST”) since July 2017. He has been the general manager of the Flat Research and Development Center and the
executive Director and general manager of Flat (Jiaxing) Import and Export Trade Limited (“Flat Trade”) since 2019,
the Director of PetroChina Kunlun Gas since April 2020 and the executive Director and at Research and Dev2017.0j8.0or of P
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Mr. Ruan also serves in various industry and business associations. He has served as a standing vice-chairman of
Zhejiang Provincial Glass Industry Association® (U O 0O O 0O 0O 0O 0O O ) since April 2009, a vice-chairman of Jiaxing
City Entrepreneur Association® (0 O 0O 0O 0O 0O 0O 0O) and Jiaxing City Chamber of Commerce* (0 00 00O OO0

) since October 2010 and December 2011, respectively. Mr. Ruan has received several awards during the past years,
including but not limited to, “the Advanced Participants in Association Activities in the Year 2012* (20120 0O 0 0O O

U 0O00O0O0O0O)” granted by China Architectural and Industrial Glass Association* (U U0 0 OO OOOOOOOMO) in
March 2013, “Excellent Entrepreneur of Small and Medium Enterprises in Zhejiang Province* (01 0D OO OO O OO

0 O 0O)” granted by Association of Small and Medium Enterprises in Zhejiang Province* (U OO O OO O OO ) and
Selection Committee of Excellent Entrepreneur of Small and Medium Enterprises in Zhejiang Province* (0 0 O O O O

00000000000 )in December 2012, and “Jiaxing Charity Award in the Year 2011* (20110 000 0 0O O)”
granted by Jiaxing Municipal People’s Government in December 2011. In addition, Mr. Ruan was also awarded as “The
Innovative Pioneer People of Small and Medium Enterprises in the PRC* (U OO OO0 O OO0 OO )” granted by
Association of Small and Medium Enterprises in the PRC* (U 00 O OO O OO O O ) and Selection Committee of Innovative
Products among the PRC Enterprises* (U OO OO OO OOOOOODOO) in October 2011, and one of Mr. Ruan’s
research results was awarded as “Top 100 Innovative & Excellent Research Results of Small and Medium Enterprises
in the PRC* (20110 0 0000 0O OO 1000/0 00 OO O)” by same institutions in October 2011. In April 2013,
Ruan Hongliang was awarded the title of model worker by the Jia Xing Municipal Government. In May of the same
year, Mr. Ruan Hongliang was awarded a Private Entrepreneur of Outstanding Contribution in the 30th Anniversary of
Establishment of Jiaxing City with Revocation of District. In 2016, Mr. Ruan Hongliang was ranked among the “Ten Top
Distinguished Figures with Great Contributions to the Industrial Transformation”, which was a part of the 5th session of
“Ten Top Distinguished Figures” elections jointly organized by Jiaxing Economic and Information Committee, Jiaxing
Science and Technology Bureau and Jiaxing Commerce Bureau. On 1 February 2017, he was awarded the honorary
certificate of “Excellent Enterprise Manager of Xiuzhou National High-tech Zone in 2017 by the Management Committee
of Xiuzhou Hi-tech Industrial Development Zone . In December 2018, he was awarded the title of “Model Worker of
Jiaxing” by Jiaxing Federation of Trade Unions. In March 2020, he was awarded the title of “Meritorious Entrepreneur”
by Jiaxing Municipal Party Committee and Jiaxing Municipal People’s Government.

Mr. Ruan Hongliang is the spouse of Ms. Jiang Jinhua, an executive Director, father of Ms. Ruan Zeyun, the company
secretary of the Company and father-in-law of Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, a deputy general manager of the Company.

My . Jiang Jinh a (U U O 0O ), formerly known as Ms. Jiang Jin’e (Ul U 0 ), aged 59, joined the Group in June 2000
and is currently an executive Director, the deputy chairman of Board and a deputy general manager of the Company,
mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Ruan Hongliang to discharge his duties as the general manager of the Company.
Ms. Jiang is a controlling shareholder of the Company and also currently a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. Ms. Jiang graduated from Arizona State University in the United States in May 2013 with a master degree
in business management (long distance learning).

Ms. Jiang has over 27 years’ experience in glass industry. She chaired the Board from June 2000 to September 2003 and
served as the deputy general manager of our predecessor from September 2003 to December 2005. Ms. Jiang has also
served as our deputy chairman of Board since December 2005. She has been a deputy general manager of the Company
since June 2009. She served as a director of Zhejiang Jiafu and Anhui Flat Materials, our subsidiaries, from August 2007
to March 2014 and from January 2011 to March 2014, respectively. She also served as the executive deputy general
manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from February 2012 to November 2012. She was the executive Director and general manager
of Yucheng Commerce and Trade*(OJ O O O ) from 2013 to 2015; has been the vice president and deputy general manager
since 2005, the general manager of the public utilities department since 2016, the supervisor of Flat Trade since June
2019, the executive Director and general manager of Zhejiang Deyuan Agricultural Development Co., Ltd* (0 0O O O
0000000 0) since December 2020.
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Outside of the Group, Ms. Jiang has been the general manager of Jiaxing Xiucheng District Construction Project Co., Ltd.*
(OO0 O0O0O0O0bOboOoOoogn)fromJune 1993 to June 2000 and was a supervisor of Jiaxing Glassware Plant* (O
OO0O0000DO)from August 1998 to August 2009. Ms. Jiang served as a supervisor of Jiaxing City Fute Safety Glass
Co,Ltd* (000D DOOOOONON) from December 2003 to August 2008. Ms. Jiang was awarded as “Excellent
Female Entrepreneur in Jiaxing® (I 0 U 0O 0O O 0O O O )” by Female Association of Jiaxing® (I 0 U 0 0O U 0 0O ) and
Association of Female Entrepreneur in Jiaxing® (U O O 0O 0O O O O 0O ) in December 2012. Ms. Jiang was awarded as
“Outstanding Contribution to Women in Global Business by Women Entreprenuers” by the United Nations Commission
on Women’s Status in March 2008. In December 2020, she was selected as the “Scientific and Technological Innovation
Figure during the 13th Five-Year Plan Period” by China Sundry Articles Industry Association. In December 2020, she was
awarded the title of “Charismatic Businesswoman of Zhejiang and Model Winner of Two Battles” by Zhejiang Association
of Women Entrepreneurs. Ms. Jiang is also the vice president of Zhejiang Association of Women Entrepreneurs, and
legal person and president of Cizhou Community Public Welfare Development Center, Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing.

Ms. Jiang Jinhua is the spouse of Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director, mother of Ms. Ruan Zeyun and mother-
in-law of Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, a deputy general manager of the Company.

M. Wei Ye hong (0 0 O O O), aged 49, a co-founder of the Group and is currently an executive Director and a deputy
general manager of the Company, mainly responsible for management of our industrial parks of headquarter. Mr. Wei is
currently a member of the strategic development committee of the Company. Mr. Wei graduated from Jiaxing Advanced
Vocational College* (U U OO OO OO O) in Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, in July 1992. Mr. Wei has
been an assistant engineer recognized by Jiaxing Municipal Bureau of Personnel, Zhejiang Province* (O 00 0 O O O
0 0O 0O), now known as Jiaxing Municipal Bureau of Human Resources and Social Security* (U OO O OO OO OO
0 0O 0O), since August 2000, and an engineer recognized by Jiaxing Municipal Bureau of Human Resources and Social
Security since February 2013. Mr. Wei has also been an expert member of the building curtain wall risk-based detection
committee of detection technology branch of the Chinese Ceramic Society* (U 0 0O O O0O0OO0ODOOOOOOOO
000000000 ) since March 2015.

Mr. Wei has over 25 years’ experience in glass industry. He served in our predecessor as a sales manager from March

2003 to September 2010. He has been serving as a deputy general manager of the Company since July 2009 and a Director
since August 2009. He also served as the chairman of the board of Supervisors of the Company from December 2005 to
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M . Shen Qif (00 000),aged 54, joined the Group in September 1999 and is currently an executive Director of the
Company, mainly responsible for management of the business and operation of Zhejiang Flat. Mr. Shen graduated from
Shanghai University of Engineering Science* (Ll 0 U O O O O O ) in Shanghai, the PRC, in January 1987, majoring in
machinery manufacturing and equipment.

Mr. Shen has over 19 years’ experience in glass industry. Mr. Shen served successively as workshop manager and
deputy manager of production department in our predecessor from September 1999 to December 2001. He also served
in our predecessor as a brand management manager from December 2001 to August 2010. He served as a Supervisor of
the Company from December 2005 to June 2009 and as the chairman of the board of Supervisors of the Company from
June 2009 to January 2015. Mr. Shen also served or serves in our subsidiaries. He successively served as a manager of
processing production department, an assistant general manager and a deputy general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from
August 2010 to May 2012. He also served as a deputy general manager of Zhejiang Flat from May 2012 to January 2014.
He has served as the executive deputy general manager of Zhejiang Flat since January 2014. He has served as the Director
of the Company since 2015 and the general manager of the household glass business segment of the Company since 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

M . C iXiao hong (U U O O 0O), aged 50, joined the Group in November 2016 and is currently an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Cui is currently the chairman of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee, and a member of each of the nomination committee, strategic development committee and risk management
committee of the Company. Mr. Cui graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics* (U O O O O [ ) in
Dalian City, Liaoning Province, the PRC, in April 2007 with a master degree in Accounting and graduated from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics with a doctor degree in management in June 2010.

Mr. Cui has served as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since November 2016. Mr. Cui has been
long dedicated to education of accounting and has over 14 years’ experience of accounting and finance. He has served
as a teacher of accounting in Jiaxing College* (00 00 O O ) since June 2010.

Mr. Cui has been a teacher in Jiaxing College. He has been an independent Director of the Company, an independent
Director of Zhejiang Chenguang Cable Co., Ltd.* (U O OO OO O OO O OO ) since March 2016. He has been the
head of accounting department of business school of Jiaxing College, an independent Director of Wutong Holding Group
Co.,Ltd* (D O0OOODODOOOONODN), and a member of Zhejiang Management and Accounting Expert Advisory
Committee *(U 0 000 O0O0OOODODOOO)since 2017. He served as an independent Director of Zhejiang Shapuaisi
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. from 2018 to August 2020. He has been an independent Director of Suzhou Industrial Park
Heshun Electric Co., Ltd. since 2019.

My.H aF lan (00U ), aged 58, joined the Group in November 2018 and is currently an independent non-executive
Director the Company, and a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee. Ms Hua graduated from
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University with a master degree in engineering in July 2011.

Ms. Hua served as a technical engineer in Silk Weaving General Mill of Hangzhou (U O O 0 0O O ) from July 1987 to
March 1994, a department manager in Zhejiang Torch Industry Development Center (U U O O O OO O O O 0O) from
April 1994 to December 2002, and as a department manager of Zhejiang Torch Spark Technology Development Co., Ltd.*
(OO O0O0O0O0oO00bobbnbO)from?2002to2013. She has been the Director and general manager of Zhejiang Torch
Spark Technology Development Co., Ltd.* (D O 0 0O OOOO OO O O) from 2013. She has been the supervisor of
Zhejiang Torch Venture Capital Management Consulting Co., Ltd..
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M. NgKiH ng (00 0O0OO), aged 67, joined the Group in January 2015 and is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Ng is currently a member of each of the audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company.

Mr. Ng has served as an executive director of Jinhui Holdings Company Limited (U U O 0O 0 0O J ) (listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code: 137) and Jinhui Shipping and Transportation
Limited (listed on Oslo Stock Exchange, stock code: JIN) since August 1991 and May 1994, respectively. He has been
the Director of Jinhui Holdings Company Limited since 1991.

SUPERVISORS

Mﬂ . Zheng Wen'd ong (U O0OOO), aged 57, a co-founder of the Group, is currently the chairman of the board of
supervisors of the Company. Mr. Zheng graduated from Jiaxing First High School* (U 0O O O 0 O O ) in June 1979.

Mr. Zheng has over 21 years’ experience in glass industry. He served as the chairman of the Board, the deputy chairman
of the Board and the manager of domestic sales of our predecessor from May 2000 to June 2000, from June 2000 to
December 2005 and from June 1998 to February 2008, respectively. He served as a Director and the deputy general
manager of PV glass business department of the Company from December 2005 to January 2015 and from August 2011
to March 2012, respectively. He served as the deputy head of the president’s office of the Company from March 2012
to December 2015, and he has served as the manager of the engineering department since January 2016. Mr. Zheng
also served in our subsidiaries. He served as a deputy general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu and a director of Anhui Flat
Materials from February 2008 to September 2010 and from January 2011 to March 2014, respectively. He served as the
manager of the engineering department of the Company from 2012 to 2016. He has been the chairman of the board of
supervisors of the Company since 2015. He has been the general manager of the engineering division under the strategic
development d¢partment of the Company since 2017.

Outside of the [Group, Mr. Zheng worked as a director and the chairman of the board of directors of Jiaxing Glassware
Plant* (0 0 OJ0 O O O O ) from August 1998 to May 2000 and from May 2000 to August 2009, respectively.

M . Shen F « an (0 O0OODO), aged 61, a co-founder of the Group, is currently a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Shen has over 20 years’ experience in glass industry. He served as a Director, the deputy chairman of the Board and
a manager of sales department I in our predecessor from May 2000 to June 2000, from May 2000 to June 2000 and from
December 2001 to December 2005, respectively. Mr. Shen served as a Director of the Company from December 2005 to
January 2015. He served as a manager of procurement department and a manager of marketing department from November
2011 to December 2015 and from January 2016 to December 2016. Mr. Shen also served in our subsidiaries. He served
as a manager of procurement department of Shanghai Flat from January 2006 to November 2008 and a director of Anhui
Flat Glass from January 2011 to March 2014. He has been the supervisor of the Company since 2015, the deputy general
manager of Shanghai Flat Glass Co., Ltd.*(U OO OO0 0O OO0 O) since 2017 and the deputy general manager of
the engineering division under the strategic development department of the Company since January 2018.

Outside of the Group, Mr. Shen served as a supervisor of Jiaxing Glassware Plant* (I O O 0O 0O O O O ) from August

1998 to August 2009. He also served as a director of Jiaxing Flat Glass Mirror Co., Ltd* (U OO DO DD DO OOO)
from July 2000 to December 2008.
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M .Zh Q anming (0 O O 0O 0O), aged 67, a co-founder of the Group, is currently a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Zhu has over 21 years’ experience in glass industry. He served as a supervisor and manager of retail department
of our predecessor from June 1998 to December 2005 and a manager of production department of the Company from
December 2005 to September 2010, respectively. He served in the Company as a Director from December 2005 to
January 2015, as a deputy general manager from June 2009 to May 2011 and as a deputy general manager of processed
glass business department from September 2010 to February 2012. Mr. Zhu also served or serves in our subsidiaries.
He served as the executive deputy general manager of Shanghai Flat from February 2012 to November 2012 and served
as a supervisor of Anhui Flat Materials from January 2011 to March 2014. He also served as a deputy general manager
of Zhejiang Jiafu from November 2012 to January 2015. He was a senior consultant of the float glass business division
from 2015 to 2016. He has been a senior consultant of the architectural glass business segment since 2017. He was the
supervisor of the Company from 2015.

Outside of the Group, Mr. Zhu served as a director of Jiaxing Flat Mirror Co., Ltd.* (U OO OO OO O OO O ) from
July 2000 to December 2008.

My.Ni Liping (0 U U 0 [0 ), aged 35, joined the Group in October 2003. Ms. Niu was appointed as a staff representative
supervisor of the Company on 23 September 2019. She was initially a statistician in the Company, and then moved to
become a warehouse administrator in August 2004. She then moved into her current position in January 2006 as a cashier
in the finance department of the Company, primarily responsible for dealing with bank payments of the Company. She
is also the chairman of the trade union of the Company since December 2009. She has been the head of treasury of the
finance management department under the financial center of the Company since 2020.

Ms. Niu graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical University (U U O [0 OJ [ ) in the People’s Republic of China with
a bachelor’s degree major in accounting, which she attended through online courses.

My. Zhang H i hen (U U 0 U 1), agede46, joined the Group in February 2006. Ms. Zhang was appointed as the staff
representative supervisor of the Company on 23 September 2019. She was initially the supervisor of the lamination
production line and cutting production line of the Company. Between January 2013 and December 2014, she was the
product line supervisor of the production base of the processed glass business. In January 2015, she was promoted to the
production line supervisor of the headquarter energy-saving production base of the architectural glass business segment.
In January 2016, Ms. Zhang was further promoted to the production line supervisor of the headquarter production base
for the energy-saving glass business. She was promoted to deputy manager of the same production line between January
2017 and December 2018. Since January 2019, she has been the production manager of the energy-saving glass business
and the float glass business of the Company. She has been an assistant to the general manager of the energy-saving glass
business in industrial park since 2020.

Ms. Zhang completed her junior college studies at Northwestern Polytechnical University (U O O O 00 [0 ) in the People’s
Republic of China majoring in business administration, which she attended through online courses.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

M . Wei Zhiming (U 0 00 O O ), aged 52, joined the Group in August 2006 and is currently a deputy general manager of
the Company, mainly responsible for management of the strategic department and technology research and development
of the Group. Mr. Wei graduated from Hangzhou University* (L OJ [0 [J ) in Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC,
in July 1991 with a bachelor degree in chemistry.

Mr. Wei has over 28 years’ experience in glass industry. He severed as a deputy general manager of the Company and
the general manager of the strategic department of the Company since May 2011 and January 2016, respectively. He
served as a general manager of the PV glass business department of the Company from February 2012 to December
2015. He served successively as assistant to president and deputy manager of technology research and development
center of the Company from May 2011 to June 2011. He also served as the deputy general manager of Shanghai Flat and
the executive deputy general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from August 2006 to February 2008 and from February 2008
to February 2012, respectively. He has been the deputy general manager of the Company since 2011. He has been the
general manager of the strategic development department of the Company since 2016. Mr. Wei is also a member of PV
Specialized Committee of China Architectural and Industrial Glass Association* (U 00 00000 0O0OOO0OODOONO
00000 DO). In October 2011, one of the research results Mr. Wei participated in was awarded as “Top 100 Innovative
& Excellent Research Results of Small and Medium Enterprises in the PRC* (20110 0 0 000 0O 0O 0O 1000 /0 0 O
0 O O)” by Association of Small and Medium Enterprises in the PRC* (I U U O 00 O O O ) and Selection Committee
of Innovative Products among the PRC Enterprises* (U U OO OO O OOOOODOOO).

Prior to joining the Group, he started his career working as the deputy plant manager of Huzhou Glass Plant* (O O 0
U 00) from August 1991 to June 2001.

M’ . Zhao Xiaofei (0D O 000), aged 35, joined the Group in May 2011 and is currently a deputy general manager of
the Company, mainly responsible for the management of the business and operation of the Group’s PV glass business
department. Mr. Zhao is also a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhao graduated from the University of
Northern Virginia in the United States in December 2007 with a bachelor degree in science in business administration
(long distance learning).

Mr. Zhao served as assistant to manager of the PV glass sales department of sales center of the Company and assistant
to general manager of sales center of the Company from May 2011 to July 2011 and from July 2011 to February 2012,
respectively, a deputy general manager of float glass business department of the Company from November 2012 to
February 2013, as well as deputy general manager of sales center of the Company from February 2013 to July 2013. He
also served as assistant to general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from February 2012 to August 2012. He served as a deputy
general manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from August 2012 to November 2012. He served as the executive deputy general
manager of Zhejiang Jiafu from July 2013 to December 2015. He served as a deputy general manager of the Company
and the general manager of the PV glass business department of the Company since January 2015 and January 2016,
respectively. He has been the supervisor of PetroChina Kunlun Gas since April 2020.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked as a sales manager for Zhejiang Newfine Industry Co., Ltd.* (U O 0 O 0
O0oO0oOoDoOD0O0) fromMay 2008 to April 2011.

Mr. Zhao is the spouse of Ms. Ruan Zeyun and son-in-law of Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director, and Ms. Jiang
Jinhua, an executive Director.
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M . Jiang Weijie (U U O O [0 ), aged 34, graduated from the University of Nottingham with a master degree in Supply
Chain and Operations Management.

Mr. Jiang served as the business manager of trade and finance department of the Jiaxing Branch of Bank of China from
July 2011 to April 2014. He was the business manager of business department of the Jiaxing Branch of Bank of China
from April 2014 to March 2017, and he served as general manager assistant of Financial Center of Flat Glass Group
from April 2017 to January 2018. He served as deputy general manager of Financial Center of the Company from 2018
to 2019. He has been the financial officer since March 2019.

My.R anZe n (U 000O0O), formerly known as Ms. Ruan Xiao (U [J ), aged 34, joined the Group in October 2009
and was appointed as a joint company secretary of the Company on 1 April 2015 and become a sole company secretary
since 1 March 2019, mainly responsible for the daily affairs of the Board. Ms. Ruan to also a controlling shareholder
of the Company. Ms. Ruan graduated from Sheffield University in England in September 2009 with a master degree in
management.

Ms. Ruan served as the Board secretary of the Company from April 2010 until now. She also served or serves in our
subsidiaries. She served as an assistant to general manager of Shanghai Flat from October 2009 to January 2011 and
has served as the executive deputy general manager of Shanghai Flat from January 2010 to December 2011. Ms. Ruan
has served as the chief financial officer of the Company between 2013 and 2017. She served as a director of Anhui Flat
Glass from January 2011 to March 2014. She has been the secretary to the Board of the Company since 2010, the joint
secretary of the Company from 2015 to 2018, and the deputy general manager of the Company since August 2020. Ms.
Ruan also serves in several industry and business associations. She is a member of PV Specialized Committee of China
Architectural and Glass Association* (U 0O O00OO0O0O0OO0OOOOOODOOONOCO) and a member of Youth
Association in Jiaxing* (U O O OO OOO).

Apart from the positions in the Group, she served as the supervisor of Yucheng Commerce and Trade* (O O O O ) from
2013 to 2015, the supervisor of Fengyang Hongding Port Co., Ltd.* (0 O 0 0 O O O O O O) in 2016, and the executive
Director of Jiaxing Yihe Investment Co., Ltd.* (0 0 O O 0O 0O O O O O) from 2016, the Director of Kaihong Flat* ([J
U 0O 0) from January 2020 and the Director of Hangyang Investment Holding Company Limited * (U 0O O 0O 0O 0O O
0 0O 0O) since September 2020.

Ms. Ruan Zeyun is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, a deputy general manager of the Company, and the daughter of Mr.
Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director, and Ms. Jiang Jinhua, an executive Director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

My.R anZe_ n (U0 00ODO), formerly known as Ms. Ruan Xiao (U 0 ), aged 34, joined the Group in October 2009.
Ms Ruan was appointed as a joint company secretary on 1 April 2015 and become a sole company secretary since 1
March 2019, mainly responsible for the daily affairs of the Board. Please refer to the “Senior Management” above of
the biography of Ms. Ruan.
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The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance in the management structure and internal control
procedures of the Group for the purpose of ensuring that all business activities of the Group and the decision-making
process are properly regulated and are in full compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) as set forth in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange since 1 January 2020 up to and including 31 December 2020 except for code provision A.2.1.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Ruan Hongliang currently holds both positions. Throughout the Group’s
business history of over 22 years, Mr. Ruan has held the key leadership position of the Group and has been deeply involved
in the formulation of corporate strategies and management of business and operations of the Group. Taking into account
the consistent leadership within the Group and in order to enable more effective and efficient overall strategic planning
and continuation of the implementation of such plans, the Board considers that Mr. Ruan is the best candidate for both
positions and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographical
details of the Directors are set forth on pages 18 to 25 of this annual report.

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 were:
E c i'PEPDl'a ec 0"1

Mr. Ruan Hongliang

Ms. Jiang Jinhua

Mr. Wei Yezhong

Mr. Shen Qifu

Independen Non-e sec I"W“Df‘ ec 0"1

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong

Ms. Hua Fulan

Mr. Ng Ki Hung

Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director and chairman of the Board, is the spouse of Ms. Jiang Jinhua, an executive
Director.

Ms. Ruan Zeyun, the Board secretary and the company secretary of the Company, is the daughter of Mr. Ruan Hongliang
and Ms. Jiang Jinhua. Mr. Zhao Xiaofei, a deputy general manager of the Company, is the spouse of Ms. Ruan Zeyun and
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The Board is responsible for the formulation of the overall strategies and objectives of the Group, monitoring and
evaluating operating and financial performance, reviewing the corporate governance measures and supervising of the
overall management of the Group. The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and monitoring policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management. The senior management of the Group is responsible for
the implementation of business strategies and day-to-day operations of the Group under the leadership of the chairman
of the Group. The Directors have full access to all the information of the Group in relation to business operations and
financial performance of the Group. Senior management of the Group also reports to the Directors from time to time
regarding the business operations of the Group. Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2020, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance and financial position to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

Mee ing, and Di ec 0"1 A endance Reco d

The Board meets regularly either in person or through electronic means of communication to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. The number of the Board meetings and general meetings
held and the attendance of each Director at these meetings for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been set out as

follows:

No. of a endance/No. of mee ingl

. ,3: a egic Rigk
A di Rem n€ aion Nominaion DeéPElopmen Managemen
Boa d Commi ee Commi ee Commi ee Commi ee Commi ee Gene al
mee ingy mee ingy mee ingy mee ing, mee ingy mee ingy mee ingy
E ec MPD{ ec 0"1
Mr. Ruan Hongliang 1717 N/A 212 /1 /1 /1 3/3
Ms. Jiang Jinhua 17717 N/A N/A N/A NTARGYUEROZSTOEL 1872 B A g iR, 02 #4698, 07F
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company and have exercised their duties
with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. Every newly appointed Director receives an
induction to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules and requirements.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, briefings and updates on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements in relation to continuous responsibilities of a Hong Kong listed company
and its directors and other relative compliance issues were provided and notified to each of the Directors during Board
meetings to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the following existing Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending briefings and updates, seminars, training, or reading materials on the following topics to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills:

C:;;p(f ae Reg la 0 Finance and Ind tr
goPe nance pda eg acco n ing pda ey
E wc i'PEpri ec 0:‘_

Mr. Ruan Hongliang 4 v v v
Ms. Jiang Jinhua v 4 v v
Mr. Wei Yezhong 4 v
Mr. Shen Fuquan 4 v

Independen Non-E c i'PBp Di ec 0:"

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong v
Ms. Hua Fulan

Mr. Ng Ki Hung

AN VAN
ANAN
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
Board meetings and scrutinizing the Group’s performance. Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions.
In particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that all interests of shareholders can
be taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its shareholders can be protected.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors.

All of the current independent non-executive Directors have submitted their confirmation on independence in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the content of such confirmations, the Company considers that all the
existing independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

In accordance with code provisions A.1.1 and A.1.3 of the CG Code, the Board shall hold at least four Board meetings
each year, to be convened by the chairman of the Board, and a notice of at least 14 days shall be given for a regular Board
meeting. Since 1 January 2020 up to and including 31 December 2020, 17 Board meetings were held with a notice of at
least 14 days having been given to the Directors in compliance with the relevant code provision.

The quorum for a Board meeting is at least half of the total number of the Directors (including Directors attending the
meeting on behalf of others) being present at the meeting. A Director may attend the Board meeting in person, or appoint
another Director in writing as his proxy to attend the Board meeting.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Articles of Association, a person may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in
general meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies
shall hold office until the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders. In addition,
all Directors are required to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general meeting, and are eligible
for re-election by the shareholders.

During the year, there was no appointment of new Directors. The current term of the Directors is for a term of three years
ending on the expiration of the term of the 5th session of the Board.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FLAT GLASS GROUP CO., LTD.
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors of the Company consists of five members. The employee representative supervisors, namely
Ms. Niu Liping and Ms. Zhang Huizhen, were elected by employees as the staff representative supervisors of the 5th
session of the supervisory committee of the Company. The other supervisors were elected by the shareholders of the
Company. The functions and duties of the board of supervisors include, but are not limited to: review the financial
operations of the Company; supervise the performance of Directors, general manager and senior executives of their duties
to the Company; request Directors, general manager and senior executives to rectify actions which are damaging to the
Company’s interests; examine financial information such as financial reports, business reports and profit distribution
plans as proposed by the Board to the general meeting, and if there are any queries, to engage certified public accountants
or practicing auditors to assist in the examination; propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings and motions
at the general meetings; conduct investigation if there are any unusual circumstances in the Company’s operations; and
exercising other rights given to them under the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s liabilities
in respect of legal actions taken against the same arising out of corporate activities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the (i) audit committee (the “Audit Committee”); (ii) remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”); (iii) nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”); (iv) strategic development committee (the
“Strategic Development Committee”); and (v) risk management committee (the “Risk Management Committee’), with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authority delegated to them by the Board are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

A di Commi ee

The Audit Committee was established on 16 October 2015. From 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, members of the
Audit Committee comprised of Mr. Cui Xiaozhong, Ms. Hua Fulan and Mr. Ng Ki Hung, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Cui Xiaozhong, who has appropriate professional qualification and experience in accounting
matter, was the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee primarily assists the Board to review the financial
reporting process, evaluate the effectiveness of financial controls and oversee the auditing processes of the Group and
relationship with external auditors of the Group.

During FY2020, the Audit Committee held four meetings to review annual financial results and reports for the year ended
31 December 2019 and interim financial results and reports for the six months ended 30 June 2020. Matters reviewed during
the meetings included significant matters on the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and internal audit function, scope of work and appointment of external
auditors, related parties transactions and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties. The
attendance records are set out under “Meetings and Directors Attendance Record” on page 27.

The Audit Committee is of the view that the preparation of the financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure had
been made. The Audit Committee is also of the view that the internal control systems are effective and adequate based
on its review.

Rem ne a ion Commi ee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 October 2015. From 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, members
of the Remuneration Committee comprised of Mr. Cui Xiaozhong and Ms. Hua Fulan, independent non-executive
Directors, and Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director, and Mr. Cui Xiaozhong was the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include preparing assessment codes and evaluating the
senior management of the Group, determining and reviewing the terms of the remuneration packages of and determining
the award of bonuses to Directors and senior management. No Director takes part in any discussion on his or her own
remuneration.

During FY2020, the Remuneration Committee met twice to review, determine and make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
senior management, assessing performance of executive Directors and other related matters. The attendance records are
set out under “Meetings and Directors Attendance Record” on page 27.
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Pursuant to code provision B1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the members of the senior management (including
executive Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set forth below:

In, lf@??gd;?; N mbe of Indi‘Pl‘ﬁ aly
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During FY2020, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. For the details of members’ attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting, please refer to page 27. The Nomination Committee also considered the Board Diversity Policy and
whether the Board had the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance. After due consideration, the
Nomination Committee has concluded that based on the Company’s existing business model and specific needs, the
current composition of the Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy for the Reporting Period.

S“a egic De'PEYopmen Commi ee

The Strategic Development Committee was established on 16 October 2015. Since 1 January 2020, members of the
Strategic Development Committee comprised of Mr. Ruan Hongliang and Mr. Wei Yezhong, executive Directors, and
Mr. Cui Xiaozhong, an independent non-executive Director. The chairman of the Strategic Development Committee is
Mr. Ruan Hongliang, an executive Director. The primary duties of Strategic Development Committee are to study, advise
on and review the Company’s long-term development plans and strategies.

During FY2020, the Strategic Development Committee met once to discuss the business strategies of the Group and the
attendance records are set out under “Meetings and Directors Attendance Record” on page 27.

Ri k Managemen Commi ee

The Risk Management Committee was established on 16 October 2015. Since 1 January 2020, members of the Risk
Management Committee comprised of Mr. Ruan Hongliang and Ms. Jiang Jianhua, executive Directors, and Mr. Cui
Xiaozhong, an independent non-executive Director. The chairman of the Risk Management Committee is Mr. Ruan
Hongliang, an executive Director. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are to review the Group’s
business operations, especially on overseas and export business to supervise and control the Group’s sanctums-related
risks and to monitor and review the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and formulate our Group’s
risk management strategies.

During FY2020, the Risk Management Committee met once to discuss the risk associated with overseas and export business
of the Group and the attendance records are set out under “Meetings and Directors Attendance Record” on page 27.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its Articles of Association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Company amended its Articles of Association on 9 October 2020
in response to the changed situation and actual needs of the Company where (i) the principal business of the Company
did not change but with a slightly enlarged business scope to cater to the business development of the Company, and
(ii) the description of the Company’s existing business scope were adjusted pursuant to the relevant requirements of the
electronic filing system of the local government.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company had prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, which were
reviewed by the Audit Committee and external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
(OO0O0DO000000O0O@OO000) in the PRC. The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in (i)
preparing the financial statements of the Group for each financial year with a view to ensure that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and (ii) selecting suitable accounting policies and making
prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
(Ooo00oooboboO0@oobon), regarding their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 54 and 260 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Ruan Zeyun is the company secretary of the Company during the year under review. During FY2020, Ms. Ruan
had complied with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical

details of the company secretary are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” on page 25 in this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP (D OO OO OOOOO @ OO
0 0O 0O)) in the PRC as the external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Audit Committee reviewed the
external auditors’ statutory audit scope and non-audit services and approved its fees.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total auditor’s remuneration was approximately RMB3,000,000, which Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP (D 0 OO OO0 O OO (@ OOOODO) charged the Group for
audit and assurance services. The remuneration of non-audit services was approximately RMB400,000.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors during the Reporting Period.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established risk management system and internal control system, and the internal audit department is
responsible for the internal audit function of the Group. The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems (the “Systems”’) over the Group’s asset and shareholders’ interests, as well
as for reviewing the Systems’ effectiveness. The Systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against misstatement or loss, and to manage risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems. The major controls of
the Systems include financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as an established organized structure with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority, which is designed to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintain proper accounts and ensure compliance with regulations (including the handling and dissimilation of inside
information). In particular, regarding the controls for handling and dissemination of inside information, the employees,
senior management and the Directors of the Company who possesses or handles inside information are reminded of the
inside information requirements under the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws
of Hong Kong) and the requirements under other relevant laws and regulations. The Directors with the assistance of Ms.
Ruan Zeyun, the company secretary of the Company, and the internal audit department of the Company, are responsible
to ensure the inside information, if any, is kept confidential and dissimilate to the public to avoid a false market in the
listed shares of the Company. The Company may also seek professional advice to consider the dissimilation of inside
information to be public as and when necessary to ensure the Company will comply with the requirements under Listing
Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and the requirements under other
relevant laws and regulations.

The Board, being responsible for the reviewing the effectiveness of the Systems, together with the Audit Committee and
internal audit team, regularly assess the effectiveness of the Systems, and ensures that the management has discharged
its duty by establishing and maintaining effective and adequate Systems. The process used to review the effectiveness of
the Systems includes carrying testing and sampling, and in case if material internal control defects have been detected,
re-testing and resampling would be carried out to ensure the Systems are effective and adequate.

For FY2020, the Audit Committee and the Group’s internal audit team, with the assistance of the management of the
Group, conducted a review of the Systems and assessed the effectiveness of the Systems by taking into account the reviews
by its auditor. Based on the above review, the Board considers that the Group has fully complied with provisions of the
CG Code regarding the Systems in general for FY2020, and the Group’s Systems are generally appropriate, effective
and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

@)

(ii)

Pa icipa ion a gene al mee ingy

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for direct communication between the Board and
the shareholders. The Company encourages participation of its shareholders through annual general meetings and
other general meetings where shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board, and to exercise their right
to vote at meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and circulars containing details on proposed
resolutions to be sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before the annual general meeting and 15
business days before the extraordinary general meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Con’é‘l‘ling e ao dina 3 gene al mee ingy

According to the Articles of Association, any shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding more than 10% of
the Company’s total voting shares (inclusive) may sign one or several written requests with the same format and
content to propose to the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class general meeting, and specify
the topics of the meeting. The Board shall convene an extraordinary or class general meeting within 10 days after
receipt of the aforesaid written request. The aforesaid amount of shareholding is calculated with reference to the
date on which the shareholder(s) makes the written request.

If the Board cannot or fails to convene a general meeting, the board of supervisors of the Company shall duly
convene such meeting and preside. If the board of supervisors of the Company also cannot or fails to convene and
preside over a general meeting, the shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 10% of the Company’s
shares for more than 90 consecutive days may by themselves convene and preside over a general meeting, the
procedure for convening such meeting shall, to the extent possible, be the same as the procedure for convening a
general meeting by the board of directors.

Where shareholders convene and preside over a meeting because the Board fails to convene the meeting pursuant
to the aforesaid request, reasonable expenses incurred shall be borne by the Company.

ssse P: d 4‘ f : . f 4‘ l‘ d 4‘ l‘ l .
(iii) P oced " e fo p ing fo adp opoyaly a a gene al mee ing

According to the articles of association of the Company, any shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding more
than 3% of the Company’s shares may submit a written provisional motion to the convener 10 business days before
a general meeting is convened, and the convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the shareholders’ meeting
announcing the contents of the supplementary motion(s) within two days after receipt of the said motion(s).
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The Company is devoted to developing and maintaining continuous relationship and effective communications with
shareholders and investors. To strengthen relationships and enhance communications, the Company has established the
following communication channels:

(i) An occasion shall be arranged for shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting for putting forward
their opinions and exchanging views with the Board. Directors shall be present in person at the annual general

meeting and answer shareholders’ questions;

(i1) Where possible, the interim performance and yearly performance shall be issued early to enable shareholders of
the Company to better understood the performance and business operations of the Group;

(iii) The Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on the Company’s website www.flatgroup.com.cn; and

(iv) Shareholders may raise any enquiries and proposals to the Board by either directly raising questions at general
meetings or providing written notice of such enquiries or proposals for the attention of Ms. Ruan Zeyun, the company
secretary, at the principal place of business of the Company situated at 1999 Yunhe Road, Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing,
Zhejiang Province, PRC or via e-mail to flat@flatgroup.com.cn.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the Reporting Period has been published individually on 29
March 2021.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
FY2020.

REGISTERED OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company was established in the PRC and has its registered office and headquarters at 1999 Yunhe Road, Xiuzhou
District, Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 6, 11/F, Prosperity Place
6 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong Kowloon, Hong Kong (effective from 15 June 2020).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale of photovoltaic glass products, float glass products,
architectural glass products, household glass products and other types of relevant products in the PRC. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note (VI) 40 to the financial statements.

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Please refer to note V to the financial statements in this annual report for details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for FY2020 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 69 of this annual report.

The Group’s business review during FY2020 and material factors underlying its results and financial position are set out
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the latest five financial years is set
out on page 6 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for FY2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during FY2020 are set out in note (VI) 14 to the
financial statements.
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DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend on the Group’s results of operations, cash flows,
financial condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions on such payment of dividends, future prospects and other
factors that the Company may consider relevant. The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject
to the Company’s discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of the Group’s distributable profits as permitted under
the relevant laws. To the extent profits are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be available to be
reinvested in the Group’s operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to declare or distribute any dividend
in the amount set out in any plan of the Board or at all. The Board intends to recommend at the relevant Shareholders
meeting an annual dividend of no less than 20% of the Company’s profit for the year available for distribution to the
Shareholders, after taking into consideration the factors described above in the foreseeable future.

In order to share the achievement of the Group in 2020 with all our shareholders, the Board has recommended a final
dividend of RMBO.15 per share, subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during FY2020 amounted to RMB3,371,547.10 (FY2019: RMB45,000).
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED BY THE GROUP

The following sets out the key risks and uncertainties faced by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below. Besides, this annual report does not constitute a
recommendation or an advice for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are advised to make their
own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before making any investment in the securities of the Company.

Rig ky pe aining o he PV glayq ind ,_" ¥

The Group derived a majority of its revenue from its sales of PV glass. During FY2020, the revenue generated from the
sales of PV glass amount to RMB5,225.67 million, representing 83.47% of the total revenue of the Group. In recent years,
the global PV industry has experienced fluctuations in terms of production output and prices of PV modules. In addition,
some PV module manufacturers faced severe financial difficulties which impacted the business of PV component makers,
including PV glass manufacturers. Some PV module manufacturers were not able to satisfy their payment obligations
towards their suppliers, which in turn resulted in the suspension of the business operations of a number of PV glass
manufacturers in China. In the past, the Group also had experienced customer defaults. Furthermore, the demand for
PV glass generally depends on the demand for PV modules, which is subject to a number of macroeconomic and factors
outside the control of PV glass manufacturers. The demand for solar energy also depends on the overall demand for
electricity and the overall social and governmental support for the use of renewable energy. If there is any significant
decrease in the demand for solar energy or investments in the PV industry, the demand and the prices of PV glass will
decrease accordingly. Such decreases could be substantial and could result in significant excessive supply. Any market
downturn, over-supply or fluctuations in the PV industry or financial difficulties faced by PV module manufacturers
could have a material adverse impact on the business, financial condition and results of operations of the Group.
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Rig ky pe aining o compliance of la W and’ eg la iony,q ch ay PRC enﬂponmen al la W and’ eg la iong

The Group is subject to various PRC environmental laws and regulations for the production and sales of its PV glass,
float glass, household glass and architectural glass products, which impose standards on the emission and treatment of
pollutants created during the manufacturing process, and are required to obtain environmental protection assessment
approval and acceptance from the relevant government authorities in the PRC for the operation of the production
facilities. The Group is also subject to various PRC laws and regulations in relation to its mine. As a result, the Group is
required to obtain permits, licenses and consents, such as the mining permit for its mining activities and the production
safety permit for its manufacturing operations. Any unfavorable changes in the scope of these laws and regulations, or
application and interpretation of these laws and regulations, may limit or restrict its production capacity or ability or
its manufacturing operation, or increase the costs in pollution control or safety improvement, or otherwise increase its
cost, which may materially and adversely affect the Group’s business and operations. If the Group fails to comply with
the laws and regulations, it may be penalized for non-compliance and may materially and adversely affect its business,
operations and financial results.

P { fo dfo a d-looki
at pe 10 mance an 0 “a 00 lng‘_ a ement

The performance and the results of operation of the Group as set out in this annual report are historical in nature and
past performance is not a guarantee of future performance. This annual report may contain forward-looking statements
and opinions that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may also differ materially from expectations discussed
in such forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor the Directors, employees or agents of the
Group assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that any of the forward-looking statements or opinions does not
materialize or turns out to be incorrect.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group’s operations are subject to current environmental laws, rules and regulations enacted by the Chinese government,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the PRCO (D OO0 OO OODODODOOO), the Law on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution of the PRCO (OO OO OO OOOO DO O), the Law on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes of the PRCO (U 0 U000 OO OOOOOODODOOOOO) and the Law on
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollutiond (U 0D OO O0OOO0OOOOOOONO).

One of our major pollutants produced from our production is nitrogen oxides and sulphur dioxide. In order to be a
socially responsible manufacturer, the Company has installed environmental protection and energy-saving equipment
to minimize the impact on the environment from its production, including flue-gas desulphurization facility, flue-gas
denitration facility, residual heat power generator and emissions monitoring system. The Company also monitors, through
the emissions monitoring system, whether it satisfies the PRC standards on exhaust gas emissions. The Company was
accredited with ISO14001:2004 for its environmental management system relating to the production processes of PV
glass. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company complied with applicable environmental rules and regulations.

In recognition of the Company’s continuous efforts in environmental protection and energy saving, the China Building
Materials Federation* ([ [J [ [0 [J O 0 [J [0 ), China Concrete Association® ([J [ [I [J [0 [ ), China Architectural Land
Industrial Glass Association* (L 0O OO0 OO OO OO O O ) and China Construction Health Ceramics Association®
(DOOO0OO0OO0O00O0ODO) awarded the Company with “Advanced Exemplary Enterprise for Energy Conservation and
Emission Reduction in the Concrete Glass Ceramics Industry of the PRC* (D OO0 00 00OOOOOOOOOOO0O
[0 [0)” in October 2015.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Emplo yeet

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and provides trainings to employees. New joiners must attend
mandatory in-house training. Furthermore, employees may attend external trainings such as trainings for manufacturing
management, quality control management and human resource management. Remuneration of employees is reviewed
periodically by reference to the market rate. After considering performance of the Group and job performance of specific
employees, the Group may pay them discretionary bonus.

The Group makes contributions for its employees in relation to the mandatory social security funds including pension,
work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance, medical and unemployment insurance and housing provident fund
contributions in the PRC.

The main raw materials of the Group include fuel, silica sand and soda ash. The Group does not rely on any one single
raw material supplier. The Group generally enters into legally binding long-term agreements with its fuel and silica sand
suppliers in order to ensure smooth production operation.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers accounted for 8.31% and 36.31%, respectively,
of the Group’s total purchases for FY2020.

Cq ome:t

The Group has established and maintained strong and stable relationships with its customers, with a majority of the top
ten customers having had a relationship of five years or above with the Group. The Group’s PV glass customers are
primarily domestic and overseas PV module manufacturers, whereas its float glass customers are primarily domestic
and overseas glass processing manufacturers and domestic glass wholesalers. In addition, the Group sells household
glass products to domestic and overseas furniture manufacturers and processing companies and multinational furniture
retailers, and sell architectural glass products to domestic and overseas architectural contractors, domestic architectural
glass processing companies and domestic construction companies.

During FY2020, aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers accounted for 18.13% and 59.20%,
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

At no time during the Reporting Period under review had the Directors, the supervisors of the Company and their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Since the Company is established and conducts its operations mainly in the PRC, its H shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, and subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2020. A shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
During FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company had materially complied with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong including relating to its establishment and operations, and the rules of the
relevant Stock Exchange.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note (VI) 20, 28
and 29 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during FY2020 are set out in note (VI) 33 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 and at all times up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights
requiring it to propose new issues to its existing shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

CSRC Main Board Issuance Approval Committee (U OO O OO0 DO OOOODODO) reviewed the application of the
Company for the proposed issuance of A share convertible bonds on 9 January 2020. According to the result of the
review published on the website of CSRC, the Company’s application for the proposed issuance of A share convertible
bonds has been approved and written approval from CSRC was received by the Company. Such public issuance of A
Share convertible bonds was in an aggregate par value of RMB1.45 billion with a term of six years; The issuance of
A share convertible bonds was completed in June 2020. The A share convertible bonds under this issuance were with
a nominal value of RMB100 and issued at par. The subscription funds for the A share convertible bonds under this
issuance totaled RMB1,450,000,000.00. After deducting the issuance fee of RMBS,578,301.90, the net funds raised were
RMB1,441,421,698.10. As at the date of redemption registration (29 January 2021), the Company’s A Share convertible
bonds in the accumulated nominal value of RMB1,447,297,00 had been converted into the Shares of the Company,
representing 99.81% of total A Share convertible bonds issued; and the number of Shares converted by such convertible
bonds is 107,048,107 Shares, representing 5.48% of the total issued Shares of the Company before conversion (2 December
2020), of which 107,048,107 Shares were converted during the period from 3 December 2020 to 29 January 2020. Since
1 February 2021, the A Share convertible bonds has ceased trading and share conversion, and the outstanding A Share
convertible bonds of RMB2,703,000 has been frozen. According to the data provided by CSDC Shanghai Branch, 27,030
convertible bonds were redeemed by the Company, at a total redemption amount of RMB2,710,406.22, which was paid on
1 February 2021. The Company’s “Flat Convertible Bonds” (bond code:113035) (conversion code:191035) was delisted
on Shanghai Stock Exchange on 1 February 2021.
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The total net proceeds from the public issuance of A share convertible bonds by the Company amounted to approximately
RMB1,441.4 million. As at 31 December 2020, the use of such proceeds were as follows:

P€ cen age of Amo n of Amo n Amo n
Uge fo ne p oceedy ne p oceedy ili ed * emain
RMB million RMB million RMB million

Annual production of 750,000 tons
of photovoltaic module cover glass project 100% 1,441.4 844.8 596.6

The Company aims to further expand the capacity of its core products PV glass and maintain its leading technology and
scale advantage while enhancing the capital strength and meeting working capital requirements of the Company. On
12 June 2020 and 15 July 2020, the Board has approved the proposed non-public issuance of A shares and its revised
version and also approved by shareholders at the 2020 first extraordinary general meeting, the 2020 second A share
class meeting and the 2020 second H share class meeting held on 10 August 2020. On 12 October 2020, the Issuance
Approval Committee of the CSRC conducted a review of the Company’s application for Non-public Issuance of A Shares.
Pursuant to the results of the review, the Company’s application for Non-public Issuance of A Shares was approved. On
18 January 2021, the Company completed the Non-public Issuance with the issuance of 84,545,147 Shares in total at issue
price of RMB29.57 per Share. The total proceeds from the non-public issuance of A shares is RMB2,499,999,996.79.
After deducting the underwriting fee and other issuance fee (excluding value-added tax) of RMB16,918,053.10, the net
funds raised were RMB2,483,081,943.69. The selection of subscribers under the non-public issuance is fair and just,
in line with the interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole, in accordance with the requirements of the
relevant laws and regulations including the Administrative Measures for the Issuance of Securities by Listed Companies,
Measures for the Administration of the Offering and Underwriting of Securities and Detailed Implementation Rules for
the Private Placement by Listed Companies, as well as the issuance plan reported to the CSRC. In selection of subscribers,
the Company followed the market-oriented principle to ensure the fairness and justice of the process of issuance and
selection of subscribers, which is in the interest of Flat and its shareholders as a whole.

The total proceeds from the non-public issuance of A shares of the Company will not exceed RMB2,500 million (inclusive).
The proceeds after deducting relevant issuance expenses will be used as follows:

Unit: RMB’0,000

To al planned P opoy ed

amg n of amo n of

No.  Usefo inP% men p oceedy

1 Phase II of PV glass as covers with an annual production 163,260.98 140,000.00
capacity of 750,000 tons project

2 PV backplane glass with an annual production capacity of 53,860.12 35,000.00
42 million square meters project

3 Working capital 75,000.00 75,000.00

To al 292,121.10 250,000.00

Note: As at 31 December 2020, the Company had not received proceeds of non-public issuance of A shares, thus actual amount utilized is uncertain.”
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Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities since 1 January 2020 up to and including 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company in office are shown as below:

E c i‘Fde‘ ec 0"1

Mr. Ruan Hongliang (Chairman of the Board of Directors)
Ms. Jiang Jinhua

Mr. Wei Yezhong

Mr. Shen Qifu

Independen non-e sec wldi ec 0"1

Mr. Cui Xiaozhong
Ms. Hua Fulan
Mr. Ng Ki Hung

S pe'd'P{O",_

Mr. Zheng Wenrong (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Mr. Shen Fuquan

Mr. Zhu Quanming

Ms. Niu Liping

Ms. Zhang Huizhen

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence